2000

# Lloyd A. Fry Company v. : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from a Decision of the Utah Air Conservation Committee finding that emissions from the Lloyd A. Fry Roofing Company plant were in violation of Section 3.2, Code of Air Conservation Regulations.

RELIEF ON APPEAL

Lloyd A. Fry Roofing Company seeks a complete judicial hearing and review of this matter and reversal of a Decision and Orders entered by the Utah Air Conservation Committee.

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

Prior to September 4, 1973, the Manager of the Lloyd A. Fry Roofing Company (Fry) located at Woods Cross, Utah, received notice from Dr. Grant S. Winn, Executive Secretary of the Utah Air

Conservation Committee that the emissions from the stacks at the plant were in violation of Section 3.2.1 of the Code of Air Conservation Regulations which provides:

3.2.1 Single sources of emission from existing installations except incinerators and internal combustion engines shall be of a shade or density no darker than a No. 2 Ringelmann Chart (40% black) or an equivalent opacity.

On September 4, 1973, an informal meeting was held between Fry officials, Winn, and other Air Conservation personnel, during which Fry contended that the emissions were composed mostly of uncombined water vapor, which is not a contaminant. Air Conservation personnel agreed to attend a demonstration at the Fry plant on September 5, 1973, which Fry asserted would show that the emissions from the stacks at the plant were 97% water vapor.

On October 18, 1973, Fry officials attended a meeting with the Utah Air Conservation Committee during which Fry officials again stated that the emissions from the plant were not in violation and that enforcement personnel, in reading the emissions (plumes from the stacks) were not differentiating between uncombined water vapor and asphalt fumes.

In a letter dated January 16, 1974, Fry was informed by Winn that the Woods Cross facility was in violation of Section 3.2 of the Visible Emissions Regulations on September 6, 1973; September



27, 1973; October 3, 1973; October 4, 1973; October 9, 1973; and November 9, 1973, and Fry was ordered to submit to the Air Conservation office a request for a variance accompanied with a compliance schedule or cease operation of the plant. Pursuant to 26-24-11, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, Fry requested a hearing before the Air Conservation Committee to answer the charges, which commenced on April 4, 1974, before a sub-examining committee represented by William C. Quigley as counsel and John Spencer Snow as legal advisor. Rex J. Hanson represented Fry. On April 5, 1974, the hearing was recessed, reconvened on May 15, 1974, and concluded on that date. The Hearing Committee affirmed the Order of the Executive Secretary dated January 16, 1974.

Fry then filed a Motion for Review of the Hearing Committee's Decision, which was reviewed by the Utah Air Conservation Committee on December 19, 1974, which affirmed the Decision of the Hearing Examiners. Representatives of Fry did not attend and were not invited to attend this meeting.

On January 15, 1975, Fry appealed the Decision of the Air Conservation Committee to the Third Judicial District Court, which appeal, pursuant to a Motion filed by the Attorney General, was dismissed by the Court on January 31, 1975, upon the ground that the Air Conservation Committee's Order was reviewable only by the Supreme Court of Utah.

Fry then filed a Notice of Appeal with the Utah Supreme Court on February 4, 1975.

#### STATEMENT OF FACTS

1.

#### THE LAW

In 1967, the 37th Utah Legislature enacted Senate Bill 36, The Air Conservation Act. Subsequently, the Act has been amended, in 1969, 1971 and 1973. The substance of the Air Conservation Act is now contained in Utah Code Annotated, Title 26, Chapter 24.

Pursuant to Section 26-24-1.5, the Utah Legislature declared the public policy and the purpose of the Air Conservation Act to be: "(a) The achievement and maintenance of such levels of air quality as will protect human health and safety; (b) the prevention of injury to plant and animal life and property to the greatest degree possible; (c) the fostering of comfort and convenience of the people; (d) the promotion of economic and social development of the State of Utah; and (e) the facilitation of enjoyment of the natural attractions of the State of Utah."

Section 26-24-2 sets out the definitions of "air contamination", "air contaminant source", "air pollution", and additional definitions having direct application to the creation of the Air

Conservation Committee or to the Board of Health. Section 26-24-2 reads as follows:

26-24-2. Definitions. - As used in this act:

(1) "Air contaminant" means any particulate matter of any gas, vapor, suspended solid, or any combination thereof, excluding steam and water vapors.

(2) "Air Contaminant source" means any and all sources of emissions of air contaminants whether privately or publicly owned or operated.

(3) "Air pollution" means the presence in the ambient air of one or more air contaminants in such quantities and duration and under conditions and circumstances as is or tends to be injurious to human health or welfare, animal or plant life, or property, or would unreasonably interfere with the enjoyment of life or use of property, as determined by the standards, rules and regulations adopted by the air conservation committee.

\*\*\*

Under Subsection 1, air contaminant is defined as any particulate matter or any gas, vapor, suspended solid, or any combination thereof, excluding steam and water vapors. (emphasis added)

Section 26-24-3 states that the Division of Health shall have the responsibility for the administration of the Air Conservation Act. This Section, when read in conjunction with Section 26-15-5, sets forth the powers and the duties of the Board of Health with respect to the establishment of rules, regulations and standards.

The Utah Air Conservation Committee was created and established pursuant to the authority set forth in Section 26-24-3.1.

In this Section, the Legislature stated that there was to be created

within the Division of Health an air conservation counsel which has since been amended to read: "The Air Conservation Committee." This Committee has been delegated the authority to set forth air quality standards and to determine the maximum amount of contaminants that may be emitted by any particular source under the law.

The general makeup of the Committee, its purposes and duties are set forth in Section 26-24-4 through 8. However, these powers and duties, dealing with the control of air pollution, must be read in conjunction with Section 26-24-2(3) which states:

(3) "Air pollution" means the presence in the ambient air of one or more air contaminants in such quantities and duration and under conditions and circumstances as is or tends to be injurious to human health or welfare, animal or plant life, or property, or would unreasonably interfere with the enjoyment of life or use of property as determined by the standards, rules and regulations adopted by the air conservation committee. (emphasis added)

In addition, 26-24-5(1) grants the Air Conservation Committee the power to make rules regarding the control abatement and prevention of air pollution from all sources and again, in Subsection (2), the Committee was given the power to establish air quality standards on a regional basis. Furthermore, Subsection (4) grants the Committee the power to hold hearings related to any aspect of or matter in the administration of the Air Conservation Act. Subsection (5) grants the Committee the power to issue such orders as may be necessary

to effectuate the purposes of the Air Conservation Act and to enforce these orders by all appropriate administrative and judicial proceedings and to cause the institution of judicial proceedings to secure compliance with the Act. Subsection (12) states that the Committee shall determine "by means of field studies and sampling the degree of contamination and air pollution in all parts of the State." It is apparent that the Committee is required not only to conduct field studies, but also must conduct the sampling evaluation to determine possible violators of the Act. The transcript is void of any evidence whatsoever regarding samples that were taken or of any field studies given to "smoke readers" to accomplish this objective.

The procedure that must be followed by the Committee in adopting standards of quality for ambient air, the notice that must be given and the hearing requirements are set forth in Section 26-24-10. In Subsection (2) the Air Conservation Committee is given broad power "to establish such emissions control requirements, by rule, regulation or standard as in its judgment may be necessary to prevent, abate or control air pollution."

The Utah State Board of Health has adopted a Code of Air Conservation Regulations pursuant to authority of Section 26-24-5 and 26-14-5. Section 3.2, Visible Emissions, of the Code of Air Conservation Regulations reads:

3.2.1 Single sources of emission from existing installations except incinerators and internal combustion engines shall be of shade or density no darker than a No. 2 Ringelmann Chart (40% black) or an equivalent opacity.

Section 3.2.6(d) of the Code, Exceptions, states, "An emission failing to meet the standard because of the effect of uncombined water shall not be in violation."

Section 1.1.26 of the Code defines:

Ringelmann Chart means the Chart published by the U. S. Bureau of Mines (Information Circular 7718) which illustrates graduated shades of grey to black for use in determining the light obscuring capability of particulate matter.

Section 1.1.31 of the Code defines:

Equivalent opacity means the relationship of opaqueness or percent obscuration of light to the Ringelmann Chart for shades other than black and is approximately equal to the following:

<u>Equivalent Opacity (%)</u>	<u>Ringelmann No.</u>
20 . . . . .	1
40 . . . . .	2
60 . . . . .	3
80 . . . . .	4
100 . . . . .	5

However, this, again, must be read in conjunction with Section 26-24-2(3) which defines air pollution.

No guidelines are set out as to the manner in which an inspector should make an evaluation or "reading" of the plume to determine whether the emission is in violation of Section 3.2.1 of

the Code prohibiting a shade or density no darker than a No. 2 Ringelmann Chart (40% black) or an equivalent opacity; i.e., what distance the inspector must be from the stack, the diameter of the stack, the angle from which the observation is made, the number and time sequence of observations, and the circumstances under which the observation is made, such as the time of the evaluation, position of the sun, weather conditions, wind, humidity, or the background of the plume. The evaluation process depends solely on the subjective judgment of the inspector at the time the smoke reading occurs (Tr., Vol. I, pp. 49, 50, 51).

The saturant and coating asphalt is purchased from Trumbull Asphalt Company of Woods Cross (Tr., Vol. II, p. 58). The asphalt, before it is used in the Fry manufacturing process, is "full blown," which means it has been distilled to the extent that a high degree of the volatile oils have been driven off before it is sold to Fry (Tr., Vol. II, p. 59). A much higher temperature is used in the blowing process than the temperature of the asphalt when it is used by Fry to saturate the felt in its manufacturing process (Tr., Vol. II, pp. 61, 62). In the "blowing process" the asphalt is oxidized just under its flash point of 500, 550 or 600 degrees, which is hotter than the flashpoint of the asphalt in the Fry plant, which is 450 degrees. The melt point of the asphalt after it is "full blown," ranges from 120 to 140 degrees (Tr., Vol. II, p. 120).

The specifications Fry receives from Trumbull state the heat loss by the American Society of Testing Materials (ASTM, D-6) which determines the loss on heating of fumes. Fry's specification requires that the test be run at temperatures of 465 degrees. At this point, the heat loss measurement (loss of fumes) equals .67 degrees heat loss by weight over a period of 8 hours, a heat loss 0.08375 percent occurs during each hour which is the air contaminant or particulate emitted by the Fry process (Tr., Vol. II, pp. 117, 118, Ex. 17).

The manufacturing process at the Fry plant in the production of roofing materials involves a roll of asphalt used at the beginning of a single production line from which the felt is wound off in loops on a series of rollers into a pre-saturation area where asphalt heated to a range from 430 to 450 degrees impacts against one side of the felt, which is composed of 6 to 9 percent moisture content. When the asphalt contacts the side of the felt sheet, moisture is driven off the opposite side in the form of steam. Thereafter, the sheet of felt continues to move in loops around the rollers into a dip tank where the felt is further saturated and coated with asphalt on both sides (Tr., Vol. I, pp. 227, 228). It was uncontroverted that the effect of impacting asphalt on one side of the felt sheet during the pre-saturating process was to drive out the moisture content in the form of water vapor from the felt. After the moisture is driven from the felt, it is caught in overhead metal



hoods and becomes the major part of the emissions from the plant (Tr., Vol. I, p. 229). The amount of particulate or asphalt emitted during the process is approximately 5 percent of the total emission or in a ratio of water vapor to asphalt of 20 to 1 (Tr., Vol. I, pp. 229, 230). There is no combustion involved in the Fry manufacturing process. The emissions from the pre-saturator and saturator are caught in the hoods and with the aid of a fan are emitted from two stacks, the greatest density and volume being emitted from the west stack because there is hardly any vapor left in the felt sheet after it passes through the spraying and dipping operations. Most of the water vapor is emitted from the west stack (Tr., Vol. I, pp. 243, 244; Vol. II, pp. 134, 135; Ex. 15E).

## 2.

### THE FACTS

On September 5, 1973, at the invitation of Fry, Alvin Rickers, Assistant Chief of Air Quality, Brent Bradford, and Lynn Price, visited the Woods Cross plant where they observed the emissions from the stacks during the normal operation of the plant. While there they examined the emissions when the felt sheet was proceeding through the asphalt saturators and also observed the emissions from the stacks when the felt sheet was "broken" or when the felt sheet was not passing through the asphalt saturators, the purpose

being to compare the opacity of the emissions with the water vapor forced out of the felt and into the stack and the emissions when the felt was broken, permitting no moisture from the felt to become part of the emissions. (Opacity is the amount of limitation or inhibition which prevents an observer from seeing objects through a plume; 40 percent opacity means 40 percent of your vision through the smoke plume is obscured (Tr., Vol. I, pp. 21, 22)). Photographs were taken of the emissions from the plant during normal operation and during the operation when the felt was "broken" which show conclusively that the smoke plume during normal operation is composed almost entirely of water vapor (Ex. 15, 15A, 15C, 15D and 15E). Readings of the plume were taken by Alvin Rickers who informed the Fry people the emissions from the plant during normal operation were not in violation (Tr., Vol. I, p. 64).

In a letter (Ex. 1), Fry was charged with violations on six different dates on which readings or evaluations were made by personnel from the Utah Air Conservation Committee or from the Davis County Department of Health. All of these men were graduates of a smoke school conducted by the Air Conservation Committee.

The course given at the smoke school consisted of the use of a smoke generator powered by an oil burning furnace which was so arranged that an air, water or oil mixture could be varied to produce incomplete combustion, the result being a black or a white

plume. The generator stack had attached to it an electric eye which measured the opacity of the plume regardless of the color. The students were taught by first showing them a plume of smoke and telling them the percent of opacity over a period of time. Then the student had the opportunity of reviewing the procedure on a basis of comparison from what they had been told initially (Tr., Vol. I, pp. 15, 16). The school lasted for approximately three days (Tr., Vol. I, p. 20). However, there was no method utilized at the school and the students were not trained to read a smoke plume which was partially composed of water vapor, called a "wet plume" (Tr., Vol. I, p. 23). There are many variations in the opacity estimates given by the students and the training must be repeated often. Sometimes, it took the whole course of three days, or continual repetition to get some student's "eyeballs calibrated" so they could make estimates that met the requirements (Tr., Vol. I, p. 24). As stated, there was no training available for the reading of a wet plume other than experience in the field where the smoke reader attempted to evaluate the opacity of the plume after the moisture had evaporated out of it (Vol. I, pp. 48, 49). The determination of when the water vapor has evaporated out of the plume depends upon the judgment of the reader (Vol. I, pp. 50, 51). The distance the plume travels before the water vapor is

dissipated depends upon the weather conditions, the amount of humidity in the air, and a "number of other things" (Tr., Vol. I, pp. 73, 74). There is no other process in the State of Utah where felt is saturated with asphalt as occurs in the Fry plant (Tr., Vol. I, p. 75), and none of the smoke readers who read the emissions from the Fry plant as being in violation; that is, of a density darker than a No. 2 Ringelmann Chart (40% black) or an equivalent opacity, had any prior training in reading or evaluating plumes with the same or similar composition of water vapor as that contained in the Fry plumes. No tests had ever been made to determine the subjective variations on reading which would exist between the different smoke readers (Tr., Vol. I, p. 31). There are various factors, such as humidity, temperature, time of day, position of the sun, and background beyond the plume, which must be considered in making a proper evaluation of the density of a plume (Tr., Vol. I, pp. 32, 33). It is generally more difficult for students to get their eyes calibrated to reading white smoke than it is for the student to read black smoke (Tr., Vol. I, p. 36). The evaluations are made by smoke readers in the field without any monitoring devices (Tr., Vol. I, p. 43). Any water vapor in the plume creates greater opacity and would make the plume more difficult to evaluate (Tr., Vol. I, p. 43). Therefore, the determination of opacity is made upon the smoke reader's subjective observation and judgment (Tr., Vol. I, p.49).

The first date on which an alleged violation occurred was September 6, 1973, whereupon an inspector found the west stack of the Fry plant to have an emission of between 45 percent to 60 percent opacity; no reading was made of the east stack (Prosecution Ex. No. 1). The 45 percent to 60 percent opacity range allegedly represents the highest and lowest of 12 readings made on that date (Record, Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Decision, dated October 17, 1974). However, the transcript is void of any evidence to support this charge or any evidence that Fry was in violation of the Utah Code of Air Conservation Regulations, Section 3.2. Alvin Rickers, Winn's assistant, testified that as much as 7 percent variation could exist between the readings of different individuals (Tr., Vol. I, p. 55). If so, and allowing for error of 5 percent, if this inspector read the opacity at 40 percent, such was not a violation.

The second date on which an alleged violation occurred was September 27, 1973, wherein George R. Chlarson, an employee of the Utah State Division of Health, Air Quality Section, read the east stack of the Fry plant to have an emission of between 35 percent to 55 percent opacity. Apparently, there was no reading made of the emission from the west stack that date. However, the 35 to 55 percent opacity alleged represented the highest and lowest of seven readings made that day (Prosecution Ex. 1, 10; Record, Findings of

Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decision dated October 17, 1974). The original evaluation made by Chlarson was outside the premises of the Fry plant some 200 feet from the stack (Tr., Vol. I, p. 138). Subsequently, these findings were presented to a Mr. Springer, the Office Manager of the Fry plant (Tr., Vol. I, p. 138). The evaluation of Chlarson began at 11:00 and lasted about 1 hour and 55 minutes. However, the testimony is uncontroverted that when the moisture is driven from the felt by the impact of the hot asphalt, the moisture is caught in an over-head hood which is emitted from the west stack. It is impossible for the east stack to have a more dense emission than the west stack (Tr., Vol. II, p. 134), which certainly effects the credibility of Chlarson's observation or reading.

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