2000

# Lloyd A. Fry Company v. : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

In the Matter of )  
LLOYD A. FRY COMPANY, ) Case No. 13980  
Appellant. )

This is an appeal from a decision of the Utah Air Conservation Committee finding that emissions from the Lloyd A. Fry Roofing Company plant, in Woods Cross, Utah, were in violation of Section 3.2, Code of Air Conservation Regulations.

The Utah Air Conservation Committee asks this court to review the matter and affirm the order of Dr. Grant S. Winn, Decision and Orders entered by the Utah Air Conservation Committee, and Memorandum Decision of the Third Judicial District Court. Respondent further asks this court to sustain the finding and conclusions of the Utah Air Conservation Committee, which were based upon substantial evidence.

Dr. Grant S. Winn, Executive Secretary of the Utah Air Conservation Committee, sent notices to the manager of the Lloyd A. Fry Roofing Company, located at Woods Cross, Utah, prior to September 4, 1973. These notices indicated that the emissions from the stacks

at the plant were in direct violation of Section 3.2.1 of the Code of Air Conservation Regulations for Visible Emissions. The visible emission's regulations clearly define the term "contaminant" and then set the necessary emission limitations so as to insure that the air we breathe will not become injurious to human health or welfare, animal or plant life, or property, nor would it unreasonably interfere with the enjoyment of life or use of property.

Section 3.2.1 of the Code of Air Conservation Regulations is clear, reasonable and provides fair and adequate warning to any violator. Section 3.2.1 states as follows:

3.2.1. Single sources of emission from existing installations except incinerators and internal combustion engines shall be of a shade or density no darker than a No. 2 Ringelmann Chart (40% black) or an equivalent opacity.

On the 16th day of January, 1974, Dr. Grant S. Winn issued an order to the Lloyd A. Fry Roofing Company that his Woods Cross facility was in violation of Section 3.2 of the Visible Emissions Regulations. The Lloyd A. Fry Company operates an asphalt spray process upon felt material in the production of asphalt shingles used in roofing. Dr. Winn indicated in his order that the Fry Company was causing single source emissions from its west stack and east stack as a result of the asphalt spray process upon the felt material. The findings of Dr. Winn indicated that the emissions were not the result of the operation of incinerators or internal combustion engines.

Certain members of the staff of the Utah Air Conservation Committee and the Davis County Health Department made inspections of the

Lloyd A. Fry Company facility at Woods Cross on the following dates with these results:

<u>DATE</u>	<u>OPACITY</u>	
	<u>West Stack</u>	<u>East Stack</u>
9/6/73 (highest and lowest of 12 readings)	45%-60%	
9/27/73 (highest and lowest of 7 readings)		35%-55%
10/3/73 (single reading)	55%	
10/4/73 (average of readings over 45-minute period)	45%-50%	
10/9/73 (five-minute reading - highest and lowest point)	40%-60%	40%-60%
11/9/73 (single reading)	45%	50%

These staff members are trained to read the opacity of emissions from a stationary source and must qualify as observers for visually determining the opacity of emissions. These individuals receive training and certification and learn procedures to be used in the field for the determination of plume opacity. 40 C.F.R. (Code of Federal Regulations) 60 sets forth the standard of performance for stationary sources. The appendix to these standards describes the method of making a visual determination of the opacity of emissions from the stationary sources. The procedure in making the opacity observations with regard to the steam plumes states the following:

2.3 Observations. Opacity observations shall be made at the point of greatest opacity in that portion of the plume where condensed water vapor is not present. The observer shall not look continuously at the plume, but instead shall observe the plume momentarily at 15-second intervals.

2.3.1 Attached steam plumes. When condensed water vapor is present within the plume as it emerges from the emission outlet, opacity observations shall be made beyond the point in the plume at which condensed water vapor is no longer visible. The observer shall record the approximate distance from the emission outlet to the point in the plume at which the observations are made.

2.3.2 Detached steam plumes. When water vapor in the plume condenses and becomes visible at a distinct distance from the emission outlet, the opacity of emissions should be evaluated at the emission outlet prior to the condensation of water vapor and the formation of the steam plume. 40 C.F.R. 60.

The qualified observers are trained to read the plume at the point of greatest opacity beyond the breakpoint where the steam dissipates, or in that portion of the plume where condensed water vapor is absent. The readings were taken by these certified smoke readers beyond the point at which condensed water vapor is no longer visible. This procedure was employed because the Fry plumes were attached plumes rather than detached plumes as set forth above in the procedure. These provisions were added by the Environmental Protection Agency to make it clear that the opacity of contaminated water in steam plumes is to be read at the point where water does not exist in condensed form. The two specific instructions are (1) where the case for opacity can be observed prior to the formation of the condensed water plume, and the other (2) for the case where opacity is to be observed after the condensed water plume has dissipated.

The opacity of white plumes is measured in terms of percentage, while the opacity of black plumes is measured in terms of numbers

from a Ringelmann Chart. Each number from 1 to 5 on the Ringelmann Chart represents an increase of 20% opacity from zero. The equivalent opacity of a Ringelmann Chart No. 2 is 40%. The single sources of emission from the Lloyd A. Fry Roofing Company were of a shade or density darker than No. 2, Ringelmann Chart (40% black), or equivalent opacity, on the dates above mentioned. Such readings disclose a violation of Section 3.2.1, Visible Emissions Regulations, Code of Air Conservation Regulations. The breakpoint of a wet plume (one containing visible, uncombined water) is the point where the uncombined water disappears from the plume. The readings taken by the state and county observers were made beyond this breakpoint. The particulate matter in a wet plume can be accurately read beyond the breakpoint and the plume at that point is free of visible, uncombined water. The readings taken from the east and west stacks of the Lloyd A. Fry Company were of particulate matter, and the emissions were read beyond the breakpoint. The excessive emission readings from the Lloyd A. Fry Roofing Company process were of air contaminants within the meaning of Section 1.1.3, Code of Air Conservation Regulations and were neither the result of an unavoidable breakdown of equipment or procedures nor the result of a procedure necessary to the operation of a process described in Section 3.2.6(b), Visible Emissions Regulations, Code of Air Conservation Regulations.

Dr. Grant S. Winn issued his order of January 16, 1974, that the Lloyd A. Fry Roofing Company submit to his office within 30 days of the receipt of that order a request for variance, accom-



panied with a compliance schedule or cease operation of the facility. This order, under authority of Section 26-24-11, Utah Code Annotated (1953, as amended) was to become final, unless within 20 days of its receipt a written request for a hearing before the Utah Air Conservation Committee was made by the Lloyd A. Fry Company as provided in Section 26-24-11, Utah Code Annotated (1953, as amended). Fry requested a hearing before the Air Conservation Committee to answer charges, which commenced on April 4, 1974, before a Subcommittee of the Utah Air Conservation Committee. The hearing was recessed on April 5, 1974, and reconvened on May 15, 1974, on which date the hearing was concluded. The Subcommittee affirmed Dr. Winn's order dated January 16, 1974.

Lloyd A. Fry Roofing Company then filed a Motion of Review of the Decision of the Subcommittee, which Decision was reviewed by the Utah Air Conservation Committee on December 19, 1974. The Utah Air Conservation Committee affirmed the Decision of the Subcommittee of Hearing Examiners in accordance with Section 26-24-11, Utah Code Annotated (1953, as amended). Fry appealed the Decision of the Committee to the Third Judicial District Court in defiance of Section 26-24-12, Utah Code Annotated (1953, as amended). The office of Attorney General filed a Motion to Dismiss the Appeal of Fry in light of the statute which permits judicial review before the Utah Supreme Court, rather than a district court. This statute provides:

(1) Except as specifically provided in this section and in section 26-24-11(5)(e), all final orders or determinations of the committee or the executive secretary are subject to judicial review in the Supreme Court of Utah. . ."

Fry's appeal was dismissed by the Third Judicial District Court on January 31, 1975. Fry then filed a Notice of Appeal with the Utah Supreme Court on February 4, 1975.

#### STATEMENT OF THE LAW

The Air Conservation Act was enacted by the Utah State Legislature in 1967 (Laws of 1967, Chapter 47, Paragraph 1). This act created within the Division of Health, the Air Conservation Council, now known as the Air Conservation Committee, and empowered it to act in the control, abatement and prevention of air pollution. The Federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857 et. seq.) was amended by Public Law 91-604, dated December 31, 1970, entitled "Clean Air Amendments of 1970." Section 108 of that Act required the administrator to publish a list of air pollutants, which, in his judgment, have an adverse effect on public health and welfare and the presence of which in the ambient air resulted from numerous or diverse mobile or stationary sources. It further provided that the administrator, after consultation with appropriate advisory committees and federal departments and agencies, issue to the states and appropriate air pollution control agencies information on air pollution control techniques, and such information was to include data relating to the technology and costs of emission control. Section 109 of the federal act required the administrator to promulgate regulations setting forth a national primary ambient standard for each air pollutant. A primary ambient air quality standard is one which the attainment and maintenance in the

judgment of the administrator, is requisite to protect the public welfare from any known or anticipated adverse effects associated with the presence such air pollutant in the ambient air. Section 107 of the Federal Act states that each state is to have the primary responsibility for assuring air quality within the entire geographic area comprising the state, by submitting an implementation plan for such state, which must specify the manner in which national primary and secondary ambient air quality standards are to be met, achieved and

- maintained within each air quality control region of the State.

Section 110 of the Act required each state, after public hearing, to adopt and submit to the administrator a plan providing for the implementation, maintenance and enforcement of each primary standard and each secondary standard. The administrator was thereafter required to approve or disapprove the plan so submitted and set out criteria of eight requirements that each plan must fulfill before it could be approved. One of these criteria necessary was that the plan must include emission limitations (see Section 110(a)(2)(B) of said Clean Air Act Amendment). Thereafter, the Utah Legislature, in 1971, made two significant changes in the Air Conservation Act (Laws 1971, Chapter 54, Paragraphs 1 and 2). Section 26-24-1.5 was added to the Air Conservation Act. This provision sets forth a declaration of public policy and states the purpose of the act. Section 26-24-1.5(1) reads as follows:

It is hereby declared to be the public policy of this state and the purpose of this act to achieve and maintain such levels of air quality as will protect human health and

safety, and to the greatest degree practicable, prevent injury to plant and animal life and property, foster the comfort and convenience of the people, promote the economic and social development of the state, and facilitate the enjoyment of the natural attractions of this state.

Subparagraph (3) reads in part as follows:

To these ends it is the purpose of this act to provide a framework within which air quality may be protected and consideration given to the public interest at all levels of planning and development within the state.

Subparagraph (2) was then added to 26-24-10, which reads as follows:

The committee may establish such emission control requirements by rule, regulation or standard as in its judgment may be necessary to prevent, abate, or control air pollution. These requirements may be for the state as a whole or may vary from area to area, as may be appropriate, to facilitate accomplishment of the purposes of this act, and in order to take account of varying local conditions. In adopting these emission control requirements, the committee shall conduct public hearings in the same manner and under such terms and conditions and with the same notice as required in Subsection (1) of this section.

The Air Conservation Committee thereafter developed a plan for control of particulate matter. Within the plan, and to meet the requirement of emission control, was the Air Conservation Regulation 3.2. This plan was submitted to the administrator and approved by him, and is now enforceable by both the state and federal authorities.

#### STATEMENT OF FACTS

The provisions of the Utah Air Conservation Act and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto are valid and provide adequate constitutional safeguards to determine whether or not a violation

has occurred. The standards set forth in the Utah Air Conservation Act, Section 1.1.3 and Section 3.2 of the Visible Emission Regulations, Code of Air Conservation Regulations, are clear, reasonable and provide fair and adequate warnings to any violator thereof. These regulations provide a clear and accurate definition of "contaminant" sufficient for a determination to be made by administrative procedure as to whether the "contaminant" does or does not become injurious to human health or welfare, animal or plant life, or property, or would unreasonably interfere with the enjoyment of life or use of property." The definition of "contaminant" specifically excludes steam and water vapor.

Each individual smoke reader testified that their opacity readings were taken beyond the "breakpoint" where the water vapor has dissipated and the dry contaminant continues skyward (Tr. Vol. I, pp. 95-97). A trained smoke reader can clearly determine the "breakpoint" of a wet plume when the water vapor evaporates (Tr. Vol. I, pp. 18-20, 73, 76-77, 95-97, 100-101, 120, 154, 185, 218-219; Vol. II, pp. 39, 178). Certified smoke readers receive field experience in addition to the smoke school to qualify to read wet plumes.

The visual readings of the smoke reader at the smoke school are compared to precise readings monitored by an electric eye in order to calibrate his eyeball for making objective visual readings and to eliminate as much subjectivity as possible (Tr. Vol. I, pp. 13-26, 30-34).

Guidelines are set forth by the regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency for reading wet plumes. The trained smoke reader learns to calibrate his eyeballs and take appropriate readings beyond the breakpoint. The members of the staff who made the opacity readings on visible emissions received adequate field training to read smoke plumes containing water vapor (Tr. Vol. I, pp. 18, 24-25, 30-31, 73-74, 95, 100-101, 156-157, 217-218; Vol. II, pp. 39, 178, 183-189, 197-200).

The appellant failed to show any discrepancy between "white" and "black" plumes. It has been shown that the smoke reader must calibrate his eyeballs to read the spacities of both black and white smoke in order to obtain certification (Tr. Vol. I, pp. 15-17, 40-42).

Smoke readers are trained at the smoke school and through field experience to read dry and wet plumes. They are given certain guidelines about where to stand and under what conditions they are to read the plumes. The ideal conditions prescribed are not always possible, and therefore, the smoke reader must exercise his judgment in taking readings under the best conditions available under the existing circumstances.

Some states have adopted regulations which take into account the fact that visible emissions readings may be taken under other than ideal conditions. For example, the Iowa rules adopted in Chapter 11, entitled "Qualification in Visual Determination of the Opacity of Emissions" in Section 11.1(2) under procedures reads, in part, as

follows:

"For stationary sources, the qualified observer stands at a distance from the base of the stack necessary to obtain a clear view of the appropriate portion of the plume, with the sun to his back but not more than 45° to either side. . . ."

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